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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of 
MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

Report on the Audit oflnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MSPL Unit I Limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 51 March, 2022, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Cash 
Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us , the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 I 5 as amended and the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 JS1 March, 2022, its 
profit, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 . Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS linancial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the !CAi 's Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Other Information 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's 
annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditors ' report 
thereon. 

(M .P.) • Jai rmr (Rajastilan) 
pu ram (Kerla) 



ln coIUlection with our audit of the lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to he materially misstated. 

ff, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. We 
have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the 
Company' s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so . 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process . 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
Lu influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis bf these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of 
Directors . 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and the content of the Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

l) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure "B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2) As required by section 143(3) of the· Act, we report that: 

(a) 



(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards speci tied under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 st March, 
2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31 51 March, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in Annexure "A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

a) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its 
financial position in the financial statements. 

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses . 

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d) i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
incll!ding foreign entities ("!_ntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall : 

• 



• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the Company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall : 

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under subclause ( d)(i) and ( d)(ii) contain any material 
misstatement. 

e) During the financial year, the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend . 

CA. S. P. Dixit 
(Partner) 
(Membership No.: 041179). 
UDTN : 2204 I 179AKEDWN8722 
Place: Pune 
Dated : 23rd May, 2022. 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report 
The Annexure referred to in paragraph (2)(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MSPL Unit I 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31 st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India ("!CAI"). These responsibilities include the des ign, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of the management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial controls over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For J Singh & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. l l 0266W) 

-----;:; r;) ~ -

CA. S. P. Dixit 
(Partner) 
Membership No. : 041179. 
UDIN : 2204 l l 79AKEDWN8722 
Place: Pune 
Dated: 23rd May, 2022. 
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors' Report 

The Annexure referred to in paragraph (I) under ' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements ' section of our report of even date) 

I . a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

c) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals; and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

d) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed I transfer deed I conveyance 
deed provided to us, we report that, the title df eds, of all the immovable properties 
(other than immovable properties where the <Company is the lessee, anti the leas 
agreements are duly executed in favour of thb Company) disclosed in the Ind AS 
financial statements included in Property, Plan

1 

and Equipment are held in the nr e 
of the Company as at the balance sheet date . 

e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment l(inclu ing 
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. 

f) According to the information and explana ions given to us and the rec rds 
examined by us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending ~gainst the 
Company for holding any benami propertl,Y under the Benami Tfansacti ns 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45of1988) and rnle~ made thereunder. 

I 

' 
2. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the nature of busi ss 

3. 

of the Company dues nut require it tu have any i~ventory . Hence, the requ1remen of 
clause (ii)( a) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is n~ t applicable to the Com pl 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned workin~ capital limits in excess of five er re 
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial instit tions during the year on the basi of 
security of current assets. Hence, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraJ,h 3 of he 
said order is not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion and according to the informatio and explanations given l to us he 
Company has not made investment in the nature of loan or provided any guarante or 
security or granted any loans or advances in the ndture of loans secured or unsecure to 

I 

Accordingly paragraph 3(iii)(a) to (t) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
companies, firms, Limited liability partnerships or any other parties durinp the y[ ar 

4 . In our opinion and according to information and explanations given lo us, he 
Company has complied with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act / in resp ct 
of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as 

applicable. 0y.. t-.Ssocz,~ 
~ l .,/' 

<:i ~' -,·!-........ -=="' 
.. CA_ . P o;xir \ ~ 8 

~;~ 



5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposit from the public in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, it has 
been explained to us that the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed 
under section 148( I) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

7. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in respect of statutory dues : 

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 
to the appropriate authorities . 

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax, 
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 3 I 51 March, 2022 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

c) There were no dues of Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty and Goods and Service Tax as at 3 I '1 

March, 2022 on account of any disputes. 

8. According to the records of the Company examined by us and as per the information 
and explanations given to us, no unrecorded income in the books of account have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961 ). 

9. According to the records of the Company examined by us and as per the information 
and explanations given to us: 
(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowings 

to Financial Institutions, Banks, Government or dues to debenture holders during the 
year. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority . 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no 
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under 
clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, 
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been utilized during the year 
for long-term purposes by the Company. 
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(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates during the year and hence, 
reporting under c lause (ix)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, associate companies or joint ventures. 

I 0. According to the information and explanations given to us: 

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 
clause (x) (a) of the Order in not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debenture (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and hence 
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to Company. 

11. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on audit procedures perfonned by us: 

(a) No fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year nor have we been reported of such case by the management. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the 
date of this report. 

(c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year. 

12. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi Company as prescribed under section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause (x ii) of the Order is not app licable to the Company. 

13 . To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards . 

14. The size and nature of business of the Company does not require it to have any 
internal audit system. Hence, the requirement of clause (xiv)( a), (b) of paragraph 3 
of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

15. 



16. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c), (d) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company during the year. 

17. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year, but has 
incurred cash loss of TNR 4.36 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

I 8. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, the auditor ' s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans, the auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. 

20 . To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the 
company. 

For J Singh & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration. No. l I 0266W) 

CA. S. P. Dixit 
(Partner) 
Membership No .: 041179. 
UDIN: 2204 I I 79AKEDWN8722 
Place: Pune 
Dated: 23rd May, 2022. 
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l\(ISPL Unit 1 Limited 
C.No. U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Ba lance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022 
(All amoun t in rupees lakhs, un less otherwise stated) 

Part iculars 

ASSETS 

I. Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipmen t 

(b) Other intangible assets 

(c) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Loans 

(iii) Other fi nancia l assets 

(d ) Deferred tax asse ts (net) 

II.Current assets 

(a) Inve ntories 

(b) Financial assets 

(i) Inves tments 

(i i) Trade receiva bles 

(i) Cash and cash equiva lents 

(i i) Loans 

(c) Other curren t assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equ ity 

Liabilities 

I. Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabi lities 

(i) Borrowings 

(c) Deferred tax Liabil ity (net) 

II.Current liabilities 

(a ) Financial liabili ti es 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade and other payables 

a) tota l outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro en terprises and small enterprises 

(ii i) Other financial liabili t ies 

(b) Other current liabili t ies 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an in tegral part of the fi nancial 

statements. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For J Singh & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. Number: 110266W 

SP Dixit 

Partner 

M . Number: 041179 

Pune: 23rd May 2022 

Harshad Joshi 

Director 

DIN 07225599 

Pu ne: 23rd May 2022 

As at As at 
Note No. 

3 

3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

2 

1-34 

31 March, 2022 

1,163.69 

1,086.57 

13.94 

63.18 

53.78 

10.65 

42.37 

0.76 

1,217.47 

237.70 

240.00 

(2.30) 

0.35 

0.35 

979.42 

75.00 

897.13 

0.08 

7.21 

1,217.47 

31 March, 2021 

70.34 

70.34 

8.00 

8.00 

78.34 

(2.23) 

1.00 

(3.23) 

(1.13) 

(1.13) 

81.70 

75.00 

6.70 

78.34 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of MSPL 

Unit 1 Limited 

~ 
Director 

DIN 09002057 DIN 07771508 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 Pun e: 23rd May 2022 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

C.No. U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

reclassified·to profit or loss in subsequent 

periods: 

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 

Income tax effect on above 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

Earnings per equity share [nominal value per 

share~ 10/-1 
Basic {In Rs .) 

Diluted (In Rs.) 

Significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of 

the financial statements. 

Note No. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 

1-34 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 

10.64 

10.64 

0.07 

3.64 

4.51 

8.22 

2.42 

1.48 

1.48 

0.94 

0.94 

0.07 

0.07 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors 

of MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

For J Singh & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. Number: 110266W 

SP Dixit 

Partner 

M . Number: 041179 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

Ha rs had Joshi 

Director 

DIN 07225599 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

DIN 09002057 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

For the period from 18 

December, 2020 to 31 

March, 2021 

4.36 

4.36 

(4.36) 

{1.13) 

(1 .13) 

(3.23) 

(3.23) 

(113.36) 

(16.74) 

Director 

DIN 07771508 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

C.No. U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 l'Vl arch, 2022 
(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and Amortisation 

Loss on disposal of assets & Others 

Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 

Provision for doubtfu l debts and advances (net) 

Net unrealised exchange (gain) 

Finance cost 

Financia l guarantee income 

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value 

Provisions no longer required written back 

Gain on deferral rece ived in lease payments 

Gain on wa iver received on lease payments 

Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Working capital adjustments : 

(Increase)/ Decrease in loans 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 

Cash (used in)/generated from operations 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 

8. Cash flow from investing activities 

Expenditure on acquisition of fixed assets 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Purchases of investment 

lnvesntment in fixed deposits 

Loans and deposit given to related parties 

Interest rece ived 

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Interest paid (finance cos t) 

Repayment of borrowing (Net) 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 

Proceeds from issue of instruments entirely in nature of equity 

Share issue expenses 

Repayment of lease liability 

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 

For the year ended 31 March, 

2022 

2.42 

3.64 

0.07 

6.13 

(63.18) 

(0.76) 

(10.64) 

0.08 

890.43 

7.21 

829.27 

(3.66) 

825.61 

(1,030.17) 

(1,030.17) 

(0.07) 

239.00 

238.93 

For the year ended 31 March, 

2021 

(4.36) 

(4.36) 

6.70 

2.34 

Z.34 

(70.34) 

{70.34) 

75.00 

l.00 

76.00 



Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {A + B + C) 34.37 

8.00 
Opening Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 6) 

42.37 
Closing Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 6} 

Notes: 

1. Sta tement of cash nows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" as 

specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

8.00 

8.00 

2. Expenditure on acquisition of fixed assets represents additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets adjusted 

for movement of capital work in progress for property, plant and equipment and intangible asset under development during the year. 

3. Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise the following: 

Particulars 

Balance w ith Bank 

Cash on hand 

Cheques, drafts on hand 

Total 

As per our attached report of even date 

For J Singh & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. Number: 110266\N 

SP Dixit 

Partner 

M. Number: 041179 

Pune: 23rd May 2022 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

42.37 

42.37 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

of MSPL Unit 1 limited 

Harshad Joshi 

Director 

DIN 07225599 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

DIN 09002057 

Place : Pune 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

am Mapari 

Director 

DIN 07771508 

Place : Pune 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

8.00 

8.00 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

C.No. U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Statement of changes in Equity fo r the year ended 31 March, 2022 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Share Capital (Refer Note 8) 

Equit y Shares of Rs 10 each issued, 

subscribed and fully paid 

As at 1-April-2020 

lssue/(Reduction) during the year 

As at 31-March-2021 

lssue/(Reduct ion) during the year 

As at 31-March-2022 

B. Other Equity (Refer Note 9) 

No. of Shares Amount 

10,000 1.00 

10,000 1.00 

23,90,000 239.00 

24,00,000 240.00 

Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars 

Instruments 

entirely equity in 

nature 

Securities General Retained 

As at 1-April-2020 

Profi t/(Loss) fo r the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total Comprehensive income for the year 

Interim dividend for year ended 31 March 20. 

Tax on Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 

Premium on shares issued during the year 

Utilised/transferred during the year 

As at 31-March-2021 

As at 01 April 2021 

Preference shares issued during the year 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total Comprehensive income for the year 

Interim dividend for year ended 31 March 2021 

Tax on Interim dividend for the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Premium on shares issued during the year 

Utilised/transferred during the year 

As at 31-March-2022 

Significant accounting pol icies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part 

of the financial statements. 

Premium Reserve Earnings 

(3.23) 

(3.23) 

(3.23) 

(3.23) 

0.93 

0.93 

(2.30) 

2 

1-34 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors 

of MSPL Unit 1 limited 

For J Singh & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. Number: 110266W 

SP Dixit 

Partner 

M . Number: 041179 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

llvf_ 
Harshad Joshi 

Director 

DIN 07225599 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

DIN 09002057 

Pune : 23rd May 2022 

Items of OCI 

FVOCI Total other equity 

reserve 

(3.23) 

(3 .23) 

(3.23) 

(3 .23) 

0.93 

0.93 

(2.30) 

Director 

DIN 07771508 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 

CIN - U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 1 Company overview 

Note 2 

MSPL Unit 1 Limited , incorporated on 18th December, 2020 ,is engaged into the business of generation of solar power. The Company is a 
limited company and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India. The Company's Registered Office is located 

at 1st Floor, Kubera Chambers, Shivajinagar" Pune 411005 
C.No. U40108PN2020PLC197009 

Company details 

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors of the Comp'.my on 23rd May, 
2022 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company (also called standalone financial statements) prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (' Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together wi th the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 . 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with 
Accounting Standards notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 , read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 ('Previous GAAP'). Detailed explanation on how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's 

Balance Sheet. 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company (also ca lled standalone financial statements) prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (' Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following asse ts and liabilities which have been 
measured at, Certain financia l assets have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy Note '2.3 (e)' of summary of significant 
accounting policies regarding financial instruments). The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented 
in these financial statements. 

The financial statements are presented in INR in lakhs and all va lues are rounded to the nearest rupee, except when otherwise indicated . 

2. 2 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. 
Application of accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these financial statements 
have been disclosed. Actual results could differ from those estimates . Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Any revis ion to accounting estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and , if 

material , their effects are disclosed in the notes to financial statements . 

2. 3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

a. Revenue recognition 

Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer i.e. when it has fulfilled all 5 steps as given by 
Ind AS 115. Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e. Consideration to which company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties and after considering effect 
of variable consideration, significant financing component. For contracts wi th multiple performance obl igations, transaction price is 
allocated to different obligations based on their standalone selling price. In such case, revenue recognition criteria are applied for each 
performance obligation separately, in order to reflect the substance of the transaction and revenue is recognized separately for each 

obligation as and when the recognition criteria for the component is fulfilled. 

For contracts that permit the customer to return , revenue is recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a sign ificant reversal in 
the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. Amounts included in revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, 

goods and service tax. 

Sale of products 

Revenue from Solar Power generation is recognised based on units generated. Revenue from sale of units generated is recognized when the 

Company tra nsfers all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, wh ile the Company retains neither continuing managerial 

involvement nor effective control over the units sold. 

Sa le of services 

Revenue from services is recognized when the stage of completion can be measured rel iably. Stage of completion is measured by the 
services performed till Balance Sheet date as a percentage of total services contracted. 



Other income 

Other income comprises of interest income, renta l income, fair va lue gain on mutual funds 

Interest Income 

For al l debt instruments measured ei ther at amortised cost or at fair va lue through other comprehens ive income, interest income 

is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 

receipts over the expected life of the financial instrumen t or a shorter period , where appropriate, to the gross canying amount of 

the fi nancia l asset or to the amor·tised cost of a financial liabili ty. When ca lculating the effective interest rate , the Company 

estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 

prepayment, extension , ca ll and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses . Interest income is included 

in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

b. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') 

Measurement at recognition : 

The company has elected to continue with the carrying va lue for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the previous 
GAAP financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS; measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at 
the date of transi t ion after making necessary adjustments in accordance with the relevant Ind AS, since there is no change in functional 
currency. 

Property , plant and equipment are carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (i f any). The cost of fixed 
assets comprises its purchase price and other costs attributable to bringing such assets to its working condition for its intended use, 
including installation cost of employees capitalised. 

The enti re excess of sale proceeds over the net book value of fixed assets is credi ted to the statement of profit and loss. 

Expenditure on re-cond ition ing, re-si tting and re-layout of machinery and equipment which do not increase the future benefits from the 
ex isting assets beyond the previously assessed standard of performance based on technical assessment, is not capitalized. 

Capita l work in progress and Capital advances :The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as 

capital work- in-progress. Indirect expenses on adminstrat ion and supervision are charged to revenue. Advances given towards acquisition 
of f ixed assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Asse ts. 

Derecognition: The canying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposa l or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized. 

Depreciation/amortisation 

Deprecia tion on fixed assets has been provided at the rates prescribed in Schedule II of Companies Act , 2013 on following basis: 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on Straight line method with 1% salvage over the useful lives in accordance wi th Schedule II of 
Companies Act , 2013. 

Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows : 

Asse t Type Estimated useful 
life (in years) 

Free Hold Land 

Buildings 

Other buildings- temporary structure 03 years 

Plant and Machinery includes solar panels and other equipments 25 years 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 

Office Equipments including Air Consitioners 05 years 

Computers 

Computers 03 years 

Electrical Installation 10 years 

Intangible Assets 03 years 

Freehold land is not depreciated.Leasehold land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease. 

Impairment 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life , for example goodwill, are not subj ect to amortization and are tested for impairment annually and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Asse ts that are subject to depreciation and amortization and assets 
represen ting investments in subs idiary and associate companies are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable . Such circums tances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained 
decl ine in revenues or earnings and materia l adverse changes in the economic environment. 



An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and va lue in use. To calculate value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the 
risk speci fic to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fai r value less cost to se ll is the best estimate of the amount obta inable from the sa le of an asset in 
an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, will ing parties, less the cost of disposal. 

Impa irment losses, if any, are recogn ized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in depreciation and amortization expense . 
Impa irment losses are reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset's car-rying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognized. 

c. Intangible assets 

The Company has elected to continue with the carry ing value for all of i ts in tang ible assets as recognised in the previous GAAP fi nancial 
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date 
of transition after making necessary adj ustments in accordance with the relevant Ind AS,since there is no change in functional currency. 

Measurement at recogni tion: Intangible assets acqui red separately are measu red on ini tia l recognition at cos t. Following ini tial recognition, 
in tangible assets are carri ed at cost less any accumulated amort isa tion and accumulated impairmen t losses. Internally generated 
intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either fini te or indefinite. 

Amortisation : Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic li fe and assessed for impairment whenever there is 
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with 
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful l i fe or the expected pattern of 
consumption of fu ture economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method , as 
appropria te, and are t reated as changes in accounting es t imates. The amortisation expense on in tangib le assets with fini te lives is 
recognised in the sta tement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of ca rrying va lue of another asset. 

Intangible asse ts wi th indefini te useful l ives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash­
generat ing unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life con tinues to be 
supportable. If not , the change in useful life from indefinite to fin ite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses aris ing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the diffe rence between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asse t is derecognised. 

Derecognition: The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no fu ture economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an in tangible asset is measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss when the asset · 

is derecognized. 

d . Impairment of non f i nancial assets 

The Company assesses, at each report ing date, whether there is an indication that an asse t may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asse t 's recoverable amount. An asse t 's recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset 's or cash-genera ting unit 's (CGU) fair va lue less costs of disposal and its va lue in use. Recoverable amount 
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CG U exceeds its recoverable amount , the asset is cons idered impaired 
and is written down to i ts recoverable amount. 

In assessing va lue in use, the es timated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate tha t reflects 
current market assessments of the time va lue of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fai r value less cos ts of disposal , 
recen t market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions ca n be identified , an appropriate va luation model is used. These 
ca lculations are corroborated by va luation mul tiples, quoted share prices for publicly t raded companies or other available fair value 

indicators. 

The Company bases it s impairment ca lculation on detailed budgets and forecast calcu lations, wh ich are prepared separately for each of the 
Company's CG Us to which the individual assets ar-e allocated. These budgets and forecas t calculat ions generally cover a period of five 
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is ca lcu lated and applied to project future cash flows after the fi f th year. To estimate 
cash flow proj ections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets / forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the 
budget using a steady or declin ing growth rate fo r subsequent years , unless an increasing rate can be justffied. In any case, this growth rate 
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries , or country or count ries in which the entity opera tes, or for 

the market in which the asset is used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operat ions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

For· assets, an assessment is made at each report ing date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impa irment losses no longer exist or have decr·eased. If such indication ex ists, the Company estimates the asse t 's or CG U's recoverable 
amount. A pr·eviously recogn ised impairment loss is reversed on ly if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the 
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised . The reversa l is limi ted so that the carrying amount of the asset 
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 



e. Financia l instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asse t of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fai r value through profit or 
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

> Debt instruments at amortised cost 
> Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) 
> Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC I) 
> Debt instruments at fair va lue through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

Debt ins truments at amortised cost 
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

> The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
> Cont ractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP I) on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is ca lculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profi t or loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally appl ies to loans trade receivables and other 
financial assets . 

Deb t instrument at FVTPL 

FYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized 

cost or as FYTOCI , is classified as at FYTPL. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, wh ich otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCI cri teria , as at FYTPL. 
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
'accounting mismatch'). 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 

Equi ty investments 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value . Equity instruments wh ich are held for t rading are classified as at 
FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis . The classification is made 
on initia l recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Derecognit ion 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised 
(i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when : 

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
> The Company has transferred its rights to rece ive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in 

full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset , nor transferTed control of the asset, the Company cont inues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated l iability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has 

retained . 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recogni tion of impairment loss 
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

1) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. deposits, loans, trade receivables , bank balance and 
other financial assets. 

2) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are w ithin the scope 
of lndA5115 ; 



The Company follows 's implified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss 
allowance based on l i fetime Expected Credi t Losses (ECLs) at each reporting date , right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit r isk has not increased significantly, twelve-month ECL is used to 
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credi t 
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant incr-ease in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 

reverts to recogn ising impairment loss allowance based on twelve-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 
twelve-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within twelve months after the 
reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the entity expects to receive (i. e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income / expense in the statement of profit and 
loss (P&L) . This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 
for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised cost is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those 
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria , the Company does not 
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of sha red credit risk 
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on 
a timely basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; loans and borrowings; 
payables as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair va lue and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative 
financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR (effective 
interest rate) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. Amortised cos t is calcu lated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously . 

f. Taxes 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantive ly enacted , at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity) . Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regu lations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
ca rry ing amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

When the deferred tax liabili ty arises from the initial recognition of goodwil l or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction , affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 



Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary di ffer·ences , the carry forward of unused tax cred i ts and any unused tax 
losses. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ut il ised , except: 

> When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or l iability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction , affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 

or loss. 
> In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries , associates and interests in join t ventures, 

deferred tax assets are recogn ised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences wil l reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profi t wil l be available against which the temporary differences can be util ised . 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each report ing date and reduced to the exten t that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits wil l allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilit ies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recogn ised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or 
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction ei ther in OC I or directly in equity.Deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax l iabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities 

and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable enti ty and the same taxation authority. 

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ va lue added taxes paid, except : 

> When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is 

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. 

> When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance 

sheet. 

g. Foreign currency transactions 

The Company's f inancial statements are presented in INR which is the Company's presentation currency and functional currency of the 
company. 

Initial recognition 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate 
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

2 Conversion 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fa ir value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on trans lation of non-monetary items measured at 
fair va lue is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or· loss on the change in fair value of the item.( i. e., translation differences on 
items whose fair va lue gain or loss is recognised in OC I or profit or loss, respectively). 

h. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financia l instruments at fair va lue at each balance sheet date. Fai r value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the t ransaction to se ll the asset or transfer the liabil ity takes place ei ther: 

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

> In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liabili ty is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants wou ld use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

A fair va lue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant' s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by se lling it to another market participant that would use the asse t in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses va luation techniques that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs . 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised with in the fair value 
hierarchy,described as fol lows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Va luation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indir·ectly 

observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve l input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 



For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determ ines whether transfers 
have occurred between leve ls in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fai r 
va lue measurement as a who le) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fai r value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabil ities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or· l iabil ity and the level of the fair va lue hierar·chy as explained above. This note summarises 
accounting policy for· fair value. Other fair va lue related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

Disclosures for· valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions 

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) 

i. Retirement and other employee benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and other funds is a defined con tribution scheme . The Company has no obligation, other 
than the contribution payable to the provident fund . The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an 
expense, when an employee renders the re lated service. If the contribution payab le to the scheme for service received before the balance 
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the 
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet 
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example , a reduction in future payment or 
a cash refund. 

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan , which r·equires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The 
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method . 

Remeasurements, comprising of ac tuarial ga ins and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), 
are recognised immediately in the balance shee t with a corresponding debi t or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. 

Remeasurements are not reclassi fied to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

2 The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss: 

Service costs comprising current service costs , past-service costs , gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and 

2 Net interest expense or income 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months , is treated as a short-term employee benefit . The Company 
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement thaf has 
accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months , as a long-term employee benefit for 

measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit 
credit method as at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. 
The Company presents the leave as a curren t liabili ty in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer 
its se ttlement for 12 months after the reporting date. 

Short-term employee benefi ts including salaries, bonuses and commission payable within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related services and non monetary benefits (such as medical care) for current employees are estimated 
and measured on an undiscounted basis . 

j . Provision and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event , it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wi ll be required to settle the obligation and a reliable es timate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation . When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the re imbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain . The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 
profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effec t of the time va lue of money is material , provisions are discounted using a curren t pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, 
the risks speci fic to the liabili ty. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

k. Leases 

A contrac t is, or contai ns, a lease if the con tr·act conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of t ime in exchange 
for cons idera t ion. 



Company as a lessee 

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the 
Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the 
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of 
the following lease payments: 

> Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable 

> Variable lease paymen t that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date 

> Amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual va lue guarantees 

> The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and payments of penalties for 
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case 
for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to 
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar 
terms, security and conditions. 

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for 
credit risk for leases held by the Company, which does not have recent third party financing and makes adjustments specific to the lease, 
e.g. term , country, currency and security. 

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabil ity for each period. Variable lease payments that depend 
on sales are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs. 

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the 
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease 
liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of 
modification. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following : 
a)the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 
b)any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received 
c)any initial direct costs , and 
d)restoration costs. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and 
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Right-of -use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful 
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis . The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 

of property, plant and equipment. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated 
over the underlying asset's useful life . Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying 
amounts may not be recoverable . Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recogn ized on a straight-line basis as an 
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. 

l. Transition to Ind AS 116 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian 
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 
Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees . 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning from 1st April, 2020 and applied the standard to all lease 
contracts existing on 1st April, 2019 using the modi fied retrospective method. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at 

the present va lue of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the ROU asset the same value at which the lease 
liability is recognized. 

m. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

n . Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equiva lent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in va lue. 

For the purpose of the financia l statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 



o. Earnings per share CEPS.) 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holde r of the company (after deducting 
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pe riod. Partly paid 
equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully 
paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equ ity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share sp li t , and reverse share spl it (consolidation of shares) that have changed 
the number of equity shar-es outstand ing, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the pu rpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the 
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

p. Inventories 

i. Raw materials , components , stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realiza ble val ue . However, materials and other items 
held fo r use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spa res is determined on First In First Out (FIFO) 
Basis . 

ii. Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net real izable val ue. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal / actual operating capacity as per the Indian Accounting standard 2. 

iii. Net realizable va lue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of comple tion and estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale . 

q · Cash flow statement 
Cash flows are reported using the ind irect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non· 
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular operating , investing and 
fina ncing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and 
balance in bank in cu rrent accou nts, deposit accounts. 

r. Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the Balance Shee t based on current I non- current classification. An asset is treated as 
current when it is: 
a)expected to be rea lised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b)held primarily for the purpose of trad ing; 
c)expected to be realised with in twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settl e a liability for at least twelve mon ths after the 
reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when: 
a)it is expected to be settled in normal opera ting cycle; 
b)it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c)i t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d)there is no unconditiona l right to defer the set tlement of the li ab ili ty for at least twe lve months afte r· the reporting period . 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their rea lisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

s. Cash dividend 

The Company recog ni ses a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equi ty holders when the distribution is autho rised and the 
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in Ind ia, a distribution is authorised when it is 
approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equ ity. 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(All amount in rupees lakhs, un less otherwise stated) 

Note 3 : Property Plant & Equipment 

Freehold 
Plant and Equipment 

Furniture Office Leasehold Capita l work-in 
Particulars Buildings (includes data processing Software Total 

Land 
equipments) 

and Fixture Equipments Improvements progress 

Gross Block 

As at 1-April-2020 - - - - - - - - -

Add itions 70.34 - - - - - - 70.34 -

Other adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Deductions/ Amortization - - - - - - - - -

As at 31-March-2021 70.34 - - - - - - 70.34 -

Add itions 47.20 - 971.81 0.46 14.34 - - 1,033.81 -

Other adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Deductions/ Amo rtization - - - - - - - - -

As at 31-March-2022 117.54 - 971.81 0.46 14.34 - - 1,104.15 -

Depreciation 

As at 1-April-2020 - - - - - - - - -

For the year - - - - - - - - -

Deductions/ Amortization - - - - - - - - -

As at 31-March-2021 - - - - - - - - -

For the year - - (3 .24) - (0.40) - - (3 .64) -

Deductions/ Amortizat ion - - - - - - - - -

As at 31-March-2022 - - (3.24) - (0.40) - - (3.64) -

Net Block 

As at 1-April -2020 - - - - - - - - -

As at 31-March-2021 70.34 - - - - - - 70.34 -

As at 31-M arch-2022 117.54 - 968.57 0.46 13.94 - - 1,100.51 -

Note: 

1. For transit ion to Ind AS, the company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carry ing value of PPE measured as per 1-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and 

cumulative impa irment on the transition date of 1-April-2020. It has carried forward gross block and accumulated depreciat ion only for disclosure purposes. 

2. For accounti ng policy on Depreciation and amortisation refer Note 2.3( b) . 



M SPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless ot herwise stated) 

Note 4: Other financia l assets - Non current 

Particulars 

Accrued interest on loan to subsidiary company 

Deposits with banks he ld as margin money deposit 

Security Deposit 

Deposits paid for appeal 

Receivables from related parties and others 

Other recei vables 

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivab les 

Total 

Notes:-

1. Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost . 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

63 .18 

63.18 

2. Refer Note 25 for fair value disclosure of financial assets and financial li abi lities and for fair 

value hierarchy. 

3. Refer Note 26 on risk management objectives and policies for financial instruments . 

Note 5: Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 

Break-up for security details: 

Secured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered good 

Which have significant increase in credit risk 

Cred it Impaired 

Loss Allowance (for expected credit loss under simp lifi ed 

approach) 

Total 

Notes:-

1. Trade receivables are measured at amort ised cost . 

3. For related party receivables, refer Note 51 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

10.64 

10.64 

10.64 



3. Agei ng fo r trade rece ivab les - current outstanding as at M arch 31, 2022 is as fo llows: 

Part iculars Outsta nding for fo llowing periods from due date of payment 

Und isputed t rade rece iva bles - consideredgood 

Undisputed trade rece ivab les - wh ich have 

significant inc rease in credit ri sk 

Undisputed trade rece ivab les - credit impa ired 

Di sputed t ra de rece ivab les - con sideredgood 

Disputed t rade rece ivabl es - which have 

signifi cant increase in credit risk 

Disputed t ra de receivab les - creditim paired 

Less t han 6 

mont hs 

10.64 

10.64 

· 6 mont hs - 1 

yea r 
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 yea rs 

4. Refer Note 25 for fair value di sc losure of fin ancial assets and fin ancial liabiliti es and for fair valu e hierarchy. 

5. Refer Not e 26 on credit risk of t rade rece ivabl es, which ex pl ains how th e Company manages and measures credit 

quality of trade rece ivabl es that are neither past due nor impaired. 

Note 6: Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balance with Bank 

Current account s and debit balance in cas h cred it 

accounts 

Cash on ha nd 

Cheques, drafts on hand 

Total 

Note 6b : Other bank balances 

Particulars 

Depos its with original maturity of more th an three 

months but less than twelve months 

Total 

Notes:-

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

42 .37 8.00 

42.37 8.00 

As at As at 

.31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

1. Refer Note 25 for fair val ue disclosu re of fin ancial assets and fin ancial liabilities and for 

2. Refer Note 26 on ri sk management obj ectives and policies for financial instruments. 

Tota l 

10.64 

10.64 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 7 : Oth er current assets 

Particulars 

Prepaid expenses 

Advances for expenses/supply of goods and services 

Income Tax net of Provisions 

Others 

Total 

Note 8 : Share capital 

Authorised share capital 

Particulars 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

0.01 

0.75 

0.76 

As at 31 March, 2022 

No. of shares >; in Lakhs 

As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of 

shares 
>;in Lakhs 

Equity shares of~ 10 each 30,00,000 300.00 30,00,000 300.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

Particulars 

Equity shares of>; 10 each 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital 

Particulars 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up eq uity shares of>; 10 each 

outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Shares issued during the yea r 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares of>; 10 each 

outstanding at the end of the year 

Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares 

As at 31 M arch, 2022 

No. of shares >; in Lakhs 

24,00,000 240.00 

As at 31 March, 2022 

No. of shares >; in Lakhs 

10,000 1 

23,90,000 239 

24,00,000 240.00 

As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of 

shares 

10,000 

>; in Lakhs 

1.00 

As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of 

shares 
>;in Lakhs 

10,000 1.00 

10,000 1.00 

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a face va lue of >; 10 each. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with 

regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from 

time to time. The voting r ights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to its share of the pa id-up equity capita l of the Company. 

Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on wh ich any ca ll or other su ms presently payable have not been paid. 

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares wil l be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaini ng 

after distribution of all pre ferentia l amounts in proportion to the number of equ ity shares held. 

Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares in the company 

Equity share capital : 

(Equity shares of >; 10 each fully paid-up) 

MITCON Sun Power Ltd 

Jehangir Hospita l 

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters 

As at 31 March, 2022 

No. of shares 

17,76,000 

6,24,000 

% of 

shareholding 

74.00% 

26.00% 

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as fol lows: 

As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of % of 

shares shareholding 

10,000 100.00% 

0.00% 

Promoter Name As at 31 M arch, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

MITCON Sun Power Ltd 

Total 

No. of shares 

17,76,000 

17,76,000 

%of 

shareholding 

74% 

74% 

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2021 is as fol lows: 

MITCON Sun Power Ltd 

Total 

Promoter Name As at 31st M arch, 2021 

No. of shares % of 

shareholding 

10,000 100% 

10,000 100% 

No. of 

shares 

10,000 

10,000 

% of 

shareholding 

100% 

100% 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless ot herw ise stated) 

Note 9 : Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 

Add : Profit for the year 

Add : Other Comprehensive Income/( Loss) (net of taxes) on 

defined benefi t plans 

Less : Appropriations 

Transferred to General reserve 

Final dividend 

Ta x on final dividend 

Interim Dividend 

Tax on interim dividend 

Closing Balance 

Total 

Note 10 : Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax assets 

Disal lowances under sect ion 40{a)(i) and section 43B of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 

Provision for employee benefits [Provision disa llowed 

under secti on 40 (a) I (i a) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

{Gratuity)] 

Provision for doubtful debts 

MAT cred it entitl eme nt 

Brought forward business losses and unabsorbed 

depreciation carried forward 

Deferred tax impact on Ind AS adjustmen ts 

Less : Deferred tax liability 

On difference between book balance and tax balance of 

PPE and intangible asset 

Total 

Notes:-

1. Re concil iat ion of deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Opening balance as of 1 April 

Tax income/( expense ) during the year recogni sed in profit or 

loss 

Tax income/( expense ) during the yea r r·ecognised in OCI 

Closing balance as at 31 March 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

{3 .23) 

0.93 {3.23) 

(2.30) {3.23) 

(2.30) {3.23) 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

48.63 1.13 

{48.98) 

{0.35) 1.13 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

1.13 

(1.48) 1.13 

{0.35) 1.13 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financ ial Statements 

(Al l amount in rupees lakhs, un less otherwise stated ) 

Note 11 : Borrowings (Current) 

Parti culars 
As at As at 

31 M arch, 2022 31 M arch, 2021 

0.10% opt ionally Convert ible Debentu 75.00 75.00 

Total 75.00 75 .00 

1. Aggregate secured borrowings 

2. Aggregate unsecured borrow ings 75.00 75.00 

3. Borrowings are measured at amort ised cost. 

4 . The Com pany issued and all ot ted 7,50,000 0.01% Optionally 

Convertibl e Unsecured Debentures of INR 10/- each fully paid at par on 

24 March 2021 on private placement basis to MITCO N Sun Power 

Li mit ed. 

5. Refer Note 25 for fa ir va lue disclosure of fi nancial assets and fin ancia l 

liabilit ies and also fo r fa ir value hierarchy. 

6. For exp lana ti ons on the compa ny's Interest risk, fore ign currency risk 

and liquid ity r isk ma nagement processes, refer to Note 26 

Note 12 : Trade and other payables 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

Due to micro, small and medium ente 

Due to other tha n micro, smal l and 

Tota l 

Notes:-

897.13 

897.13 

1. Tra de and other paya bl es are measured at amortised cost. 

2. For related pa rty discl soures, refer Note 24. 

6.70 

6.70 

Ageing for trade payab les outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as fo llows: 

Particulars I Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

More than 3 
Less than 1 year 1- 2 years 2- 3 years 2 - 3 years 

years 

M SM E* 

Others 890.68 6.45 

Disputed dues - MSME * 

Disputed dues - Others 

890.68 6.45 

Accrued Expenses 

Total Trade payables 

* MSM E as per th e M icro, Sma ll and Medium En terprises Deve lopment Act, 2006 

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows : 

Particulars I Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less t han 1 year 1 - 2 yea rs 2- 3 years 2 - 3 years 
More t han 3 

yea rs 

MSME* 

Others 6.70 

Disputed dues - MSM E* 

Disputed dues - Others 

6.70 

Accrued Expenses 

Tot al Trade payables 

* MSME as per the M icro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deve lopm ent Act, 2006 

Total 

897.13 

897.13 

897.13 

Total 

6.70 

6.70 

6.70 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 13 : Other financial liabilities (Current) 

Particulars 

Secur ity deposits 

Payable for cap ital purchases 

Interest accrued but not due 

Employee benefits payable 

Other payables 

Total 

Notes:-

1. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

As at As at 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

0.08 

0.08 

2. Refer Note 25 for fair value disclosure of financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair 

value hi erarchy. 

3. Refer Note 26 on risk management objectives and policies for financial instrum ents. 

Note 14 : Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Contract liability - In respect of contracts with customers 

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted 

at source 

Deferred Income 

Other liabiliti es 

Total 

Note 15 : Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of services 

Consultancy Fees 

Project Services Fees 

Vocational Training 

Income From Generation of Power 

Other Operat ing Revenues 

Total 

Notes:-

1. For detailed disclosures, refer Note 23. 

Note 16 : Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on term loan s 

Interest on lease liabi li ty 

Other fin ance cos t 

Total 

As at 

31 March, 2022 

7.21 

7.21 

For the year 

ended 31 March, 

2022 

10.64 

10.64 

For the year 

ended 31 March, 

2022 

0.07 

0.07 

As at 

31 March, 2021 

For the year 

ended 31 March, 

2021 

For the year 

ended 31 March, 

2021 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated ) 

Note 17: Depreciation and amortizat ion expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation and amort ization expense 

Depreciation on Tangibl e 

Depreciation on ROU Asset 

Amortization on Inta ngible assets 

Total 

Note 18 : Other expenses 

Particulars 

Rent 

Rates and taxes 

Postage, Fax and Courier 

Repairs and Maintenance 

Labo ratory Consumables 

Travelling and conveyance 

Advertisement Expenses 

Printing and stationery 

Telephone, Mobile Expenses 

Profess ional charges 

Registration and Lega l Fees 

Books & Periodicals Subscriptions and Membership Fees 

Auditor's remuneration 

Power and Fuel 

Director's sit ting fees 

Insurance 

Don ations 

Spend on CSR activities 

Housekeep ing Expenses 

Security Expe nses 

Net loss/(ga in) on disposal of property, plant & Equipment 

Bad debts and irrecoverabl e balances written off 

Provision for doubtful debts (net) 

Exchange loss on translation of assets and liabilities 

General Expenses 

Total 

Note 19 : Income tax 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 

3.64 

3.64 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 

1.62 

1.40 

0.18 

1.31 

4.51 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

0.12 

4.14 

0.10 

4.36 

The note below details the major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Current income tax 

(Excess)/short provision related to earl ier years 

Deferred tax 

MAT credit entitlement 

Re lat ing to origination and reversa l or temporary difference 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and 

loss 

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 March, 2021 

1.48 {1.13} 

1.48 (1.13) 



Note 20 : Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Basic earnings per share 

Loss after tax as per accounts (A) 

Number of shares at the beginning of the Period 

Number of shares allotted during the Period 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (B) 

Basic EPS of ordinary equity share (A/B) (in. Rs.) 

Diluted earnings per share 

Loss after tax as per accounts 

Adjustment on account of interest cost on compu lsori ly 

convertib le debentures and tax thereon 

Adjusted loss after tax (C) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstand ing 

Weighted average potential equ ity shares al lotted during the 

period 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (D) 

Diluted EPS of ordinary equity share (C/D) (in . Rs.) 

Face value per share (in. Rs.) 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 

0.94 

10,000 

23,90,000 

13,85,068 

0.07 

0.94 

0.94 

13,85,068 

13,85,068 

0.07 

10.00 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

(3.23) 

10,000 

2,849 

(113.36) 

(3.23) 

0.00 

(3.23) 

2,849 

16,438 

19,288 

-16.74 

10.00 

Note 21 : Disclosure pursuant to The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED 

Amount due to suppliers covered under The Micro, Sma ll and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED 

Particulars 

Principal amount payable to Micro And Small Enterprises (to the 

extent identified by the company from available information) 

Amounts due for more than 45 days and remains to be 

outstanding 

Interest on Amounts due for more than 45 days and remains to 

be outstanding( * ) 

Amount of payments made to supp li ers beyond 45 days during 

the year 

Estimated interest due and payable on above 

Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the end 

of the year(*) 

The amount of estimated interest due and payab le for the 

per iod from 1st Apr il to actual date of payment or 15th May( * ) 

(*)Amount of previous year disc losed to the extent information 

availab le. 

As at 

31 March, 2022 

As at 

31 March, 2021 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 22 : Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 "Operating Segment" 

The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision 

maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available involve 

predominantly one operating segment. The Company operates within a single geogr.aphical segment 'India'. 

The company has entered into an agreement with the customer for 25 yea rs, hence the entire revenue generated is pertaining to the same customer 

Note 23 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" 

a. Disaggregation of revenue 

Particulars 

Generation of Solar Power 

Total 

Revenue recognised at a point in time 

Revenue recognised over a period of time 
Total 

b. Contract balances 
Movement in contract balances during the year: 

Particulars 

Opening balance 

Closing Balance 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) 

For the year ended 31 March, 2022 

10.64 

10.64 

10.64 

11 

As at 31 March, 2022 

Contract assets 

For the year ended 31 March, 2021 

Contract liabilities 



Particulars 

Opening balance 

Closing Balance 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) 

c. Cost to obtain the contract 

As at 31 March, 2021 

Contract assets 

(i) Amount of amortisation recognised in Profit and Loss during the year Rs . Nil . (previous year: Rs. Nil) 

(ii) Amount recogn ised as assets as at 31 March, 2022: Rs. Nil. (31 March, 2021: Rs. Nil; 1 April , 2020: Rs . Nil) 

d. Reconciliati on of contracted price with revenue during the year 

Particulars For the year ended 31 M arch, 2022 

Contract Price 10.64 

Adjustment for: Discounts, Incentives, Late delivery charges etc. 

Revenue from contracts with customers 10.64 

Contract liabilities 

For the year ended 31 March, 2021 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financia l Statements 

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 24: Disclosure of related parties/re lated party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 " Related Party 

Disclosures" 

a. Names of the other re lated party and status of transactions entered during the yea r: 

Nature of relationship Name of the related party 

Ultimate Hold ing Company MITCON Consul tancy & Engineering Services Limited 

Holding Company MITCON Su n Power Limited 

Transaction entered 

during the year (Yes/ No) 

Yes 

Yes 

b. Name of key management personnel and their relatives with whom transactions were carr ied out during the year: 

Name of the related party 

Harshad Joshi 

Ram Mapari 

Ankita Agarwa l 

Nature of relationship 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Note 24 : Disclosure of related parties/related party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" 

c. Related party transactions 

Name of the party 

A. Holding Company 

MITCON Sun Power Limited 

MITCON Consultancy & Engineering 

Services Limited 

Nature of transaction 

Subscription to Equity share capital 

Subscription to 0.10.% Optionally Convertible Unsecured 

Debentures 

Project Services 

In terest on Debentures 

Project Services 

d. Amount due to/from related parties: 

Nature of transaction 

MITCON Consultancy & Engineering Services Limited 

Against Project Services 

Trade and other payable 

Mitcon Sun Power Limited 

0.10% Optionally Convert ible Unsecured Debentures 

Aga inst Project Services 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2022 

177.60 

135.00 

914.12 

As at 31-March-2022 

745.57 

75 

151.00 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

1.00 

75.00 

0.00 

As at 31-March-2021 

6.45 

75 



Note 25 : Fa i r va lue disclosures 

a. Classificat ion of fi na ncia l assets 

Particu lars 

(I) Measured at amortised cost 

Loans 

Cash and cash equivalents and 

other bank balances 

Others financial assets 

Total 

Part iculars 

(I) M easured at amortised cost 

Loans 

Cash and cash equiva lents and 

other bank balances 

Others financia l assets 

Total 

b. Classification of financial liabili t ies 

Part iculars 

M easured at amortised cost 

Borrowings 

Trade and other payables 

Other financia l liabi lities 

Total 

Particulars 

M easured at amortised cost 

Borrowings 

Trade and other payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

Note 

6, 

4, 

Note 

6, 

4, 

Not e 

12 
12 

14 

Note 

12 

12 
14 

c. Fair value hiera rchy of financia l asse ts and liabilities measured at fai r value: 

As at 31 March, 2022 

Carrying Value Fa ir Value 

42.37 42.37 

63.18 63.18 

105.55 105.55 

As at 31 March , 2021 

Ca rrying Value Fair Value 

8.00 8.00 

8.00 8.00 

As at 31 M arch, 2022 

Carrying Value Fair Value 

75.00 75.00 

897.13 897.13 

0.08 0.08 

972.21 972.21 

As at 31 M arch, 2021 

Carrying Value Fair Value 

75.00 75.00 

6.70 6.70 

81.70 81.70 

The fair values of the financia l assets and liabilities are included at the amount at wh ich the instrument could be exchanged in an orderly transaction in the 

principa l (or most advantageous) market at measurement date under the current market condition regardless of whether that price is directly observab le 

or estimated using other valuation techniques . 

The Company has established the following fa ir value hiera rchy that categorises the values into 3 levels. The inputs to va luation techniques used to 

measure fair value of financial instruments are: 

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identica l assets or liabilities. The fair va lue of all bonds which are traded in the 

stock exchanges is valued using the closing price or dealer quotations as at the reporting date. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (For example traded bonds, over the counter derivatives) is 

determined using va luation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The 

mutual fund units are va lued using the closing Net Asset Va lue. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 

included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

The Company has no financia l asset or liabi li ty measured at fair value as at the reporting date. 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 26 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company's operations. The company's principal financial 

assets include cash and cash equivalents that it derives directly from its operations. 

The Company's activities exposes it to cred it risk, and liquidity risk. Company's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial 

performance. 

The sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management is given below: 

Risk Exposure Arising From Measurement 

a. Credit risk Bank balances Credit Rating 

b. Liquidity risk 
Liquid Investments 

Borrowings and Other Liabilities and 
Rolling cash flow forecasts, Broker Quotes 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below. 

a. Credit Risk: 

Management 

Diersification 

(a) Adequate unused credit lines and borrowing 

facilities 

(b) Portfolio Diversification 

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to cred it risk from its operating 

activities, financing and investing activ ities, including deposits with banks. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty. 

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposit 

iii. Liquidity risk management: 

Liqui dity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability 

of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, company maintains flexibility 

in funding by ma intaining ava ilability under committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is carried out in 

accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. 



The table below provides details regarding the remain ing contractual maturities of fina ncial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted paym ents. 

Particulars 

Borrowings (including current maturities 

of long-term debts) 

Less than 1 Year 

1 to 5 Years 

More than 5 Years 

Trade Payables 

Less than 1 Year 

1 to 5 Years 

More than 5 Years 

Ot her Financial Liabil ities 

Less than 1 Year 

1 to 5 Years 

More than 5 Years 

Detai ls of undrawn fa cil ities 

Fund based limits 

Non-fund based limits 

Note 27 : Capita l management 

Particulars 

As at 

31-March-2022 

As at 

31-March-2022 

75 

897 .13 

0.08 

The capital management objective of t he Co mpany is to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefi ts to other stakeholders and (b) 

In order to maintain or adjust the cap ital struct ure, the company may adjust t he amount of dividends paid to sharehol ders, return capita l to 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 

Total Debt (Bank and other borrowings) 75 .00 75 .00 

Less: Liquid Investments and ba nk 
42.37 8.00 

deposits 

Net Debt (A) 32.63 67.00 

Equity (B) 237.70 (2.23) 

Debt t o Equity (A/B ) 0.14 

In addition, the Co mpany may have fina ncial covenants relating to the borrowing faci liti es that it has taken from the lenders like interest 

As at 

31-March-2021 

As at 

31-March-2021 

75.00 

6.70 
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{All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 28 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 101 " First time adoption of Indian Accounti ng Standards" 

As stated in Note 2, these stan dalone financia l st atements, for the year ended 31-March-2022, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the period ended on 31-March-2021, the Company prepared its financial statements in 

accordance with accounting standa rds notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) . 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financia l st atements which comply with Ind AS ap pl ica ble fo r periods ending on 31-March-2022, together with the compa rative period data as at and for the year ended 31-March-2021, as describ ed in the 

summary of significant accounting policies. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its IGAAP financial statementsas at and for the year ended 31-March-2021 and how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has 

affected the Company's financia l position, financial performance and cash flows. 

a. Exemptions Availed: 

Ind AS 101 allows first-t ime adopters certa in exemptions from the retrospective app lication of certain requirem ents under Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply t he fol lowing exemptions: 

1 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and eq uipment and intangible assets as recognised as of 1-April-2020 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of 

the trans ition date and carried forward gross block and accumulated depreciation only fo r disclosure purposes. 

3 Fair Value of Financials Assets and Liabilities : 

As per Ind AS exemption the Compa ny has not fair valued the financial asset s and liabi lities retro spectively and has measured the same prospective ly. 

b. Exceptions applied: 

1 Estimates 

The estimates at 1-April -2020 and at 31-Ma rch-2021 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting po licies) apart from the fo llowing items where application 

of Indian GAAP did not require estimation: 

FVTOCI - unquoted eq uity shares 

FVTPL- debt securities 

Impairment of financial assets based on expected cred it loss model 

Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL 

Determination of the discounted va lue of financial instruments carr ied at amortised cost 

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1-April-2020, the date of transit ion to Ind AS and as of 31-March-2021. 

2 Derecognition of financial a
1
ssets and liabilities 

Ind AS 101, req uires f irst time adopter to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospect ively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to app ly the derecognition 

requirements of Ind AS 109, retrospectively from ~ date of the compa ny's choosing, provided that the inform at ion needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and fi nancial liab ilities de-recognised as a result of past transaction was obtained at the time 

of initially accounting of transact ions. The Company has elected to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from date of t ransi tion to Ind AS. 



Explanation of transition to Ind AS 

There are no material adjustments of the transition f rom Indian GAAP to Ind AS on the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flow. 

Note 29: Ratios 

Particulars 

1 Current Ratio (in times) 

2 
Debt-Equity ratio (in times) 

3 
Debt service coverage ratio 

4 
Return on equity ratio (in%) 

5 Trade receivabl es turnover ratio 

6 Trade payables turnover ratio 

7 

Net capita l turnover ratio (in times) 

8 Net profit ratio (in%) 

9 
Return on capital employed (in %) 

10 
Return on investment (in%) 

11 Inventory Turnover Ratio 

Numerator Denominator 

Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 

Debt consists of borrowings and lease liabilities. Total equity 

Earning for Debt Service= Net Profit after taxes+ Debt service= Interest and lease payments 
Non-cash operating expenses+ Interest+ Other non- + Principal repayments 
cash adjustments 

Profit for the year less Preference dividend (i f any) Average total equity 

Sales made during the year 

Cost of Purchase and other Expenses 

Revenue from operations 

Profit for the year 

Profit before tax and finance costs 

Income generated from invested funds 

Cost of Goods Sold 

Average trade receivables 

Average trade Payaables 

Average working capital (i.e. Total current 

assets less Tota l current liabilities) 

Revenue from operations 

Capital employed= Net worth+ Lease 

liabilities+ Deferred tax liabilities 

Average invested funds in treasury 

investments 

Average Inventory 

As at 

31-March-2022 

0.05 

0.32 

4.72 

0.01 

2.00 

0.02 

-0.02 

0.09 

0.01 

As at 

31-March-2021 

0.10 

-33.63 

-3.23 

5.25 

NA 

1.30 

#DIV/O! 

1.30 

As at 

1-April-2020 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

Variance 

-0.44 

-1.01 

-2.46 

-1.00 

-0.99 

-0.99 



MSPL Unit 1 Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless oth erwise sta ted) 

Note 30: 

Th e Company was incorporated on 22 December,2020 and the Boa rd of Directors of the Company decided to close its first financi al period on 

31 March 2021. Hence the previou fin ancial period compri sed off approximately four months. 

Note 31 : Note on Covid-19 Impact 

The Company has considered the possible effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, 

Investments, Inventories, receivables and other current assets. 

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID 19 pandemic in the 

preparation of the standalone financial results. However, the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties 

associated with its nature and duration. The company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions . 

Note 32: Th e Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Indian 

Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September, 2020. The Code as been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on 

November 13, 2020 drah rules were publi shed and invited for stakeholders' suggetions. However, the date on which the Code will come into 

effect has not notified . The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the 

period of the Code becomes effective. 

Note 33: Ind AS notified but not effective 

Recent pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below: 

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework 

The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method , the identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian 
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date . These 
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements . 

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use 

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 
items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and 
related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and 

equipment in its financial statements . 

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 

The amendments specify that that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that 
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an 
allocation of other costs that relate di rectly to fulfilling contracts . The amendment is essentially a clarifi cation and the Company does not 
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 



Ind AS 109 - An nual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the '10 percent ' test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to 
derecognise a financial liability: The Company does not expect the amendment to have any signi ficant impact in its f inancial statements. 

Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendments remove the illustration of the re imbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential 
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. 

The Company does not expect the amendment to have any signi ficant impact in its f inancial statements. 

Note 34: 
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform with current year's classification/ 
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